
Vestavia Hills 

City Council Agenda 

November 26, 2018 

6:00 PM 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Invocation – Tom Bell, Vestavia Hills Chaplin 

4. Pledge Of Allegiance  

5. Candidates, Announcements and Guest Recognition  

6. City Manager’s Report 

7. Councilors’ Reports 

8. Approval of Minutes – November 13, 2018 (Regular Meeting) 

Old Business 

9. Ordinance Number 2805 – Rezoning – 3070 Green Valley Road, Lots 1, 2, 3 & 4, 

Meadowlawn Estates, First Addition Less And Except ROW Granted To Jefferson 

County; Rezone From Vestavia Hills R-4 (Medium Density Residential District) To VH 

O-1 (Office District); Horton Realty, Inc., Owners   (public hearing) 

10. Ordinance Number 2806 – Rezoning – 1200 Vestavia Place; Lot 28, Block 7, Waldridge 

Terrace; Smith Corretti, LLC, Owners; Rezone From Vestavia Hills R-7 (Duplex And 

Triples Residential District) To Vestavia Hills R-9 (Planned Residential Community 

District)   (public hearing)     

11. Ordinance Number 2807 – Rezoning - An Ordinance To Further Amend The Zoning 

Ordinance And The Zoning Map Of The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, Adopted 

September 16, 1985, And As Last Amended So As To Approve The Second Amendment 

To Patchwork Farm Planned Unit Development Zoning Application And Development 

Plan Dated September 6, 2018, To Increase The Number Of Attached Dwelling Units 

Within Certain Property Within The Patchwork Farm Planned Unit Development And To 

Rezone Five Single Family Residential Lots From Vestavia Hills PUD (Planned Unit 

Development) To Vestavia Hills R-1 (Low Density Residential District   (public hearing) 

New Business 

New Business (Unanimous Consent Requested) 

 



First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

12. Ordinance Number 2810 – Rezoning – 4517 Pine Tree Circle; Rezone From Vestavia Hills 

R-1 (Low Density Residential District) To VH O-1 (Office District); Mark Hancock, 

Hancock Construction, Owner   (public hearing scheduled for Monday, December 17, 

2018) 

13. Ordinance Number 2811 – Conditional Use Approval – 2301 Old Columbiana Road; 

Conditional Use Approval For Outdoor Recreation; The Property Is Currently Zoned 

Vestavia Hills B-2 (General Business District) With Restrictions; Richard Pennino, 

(public hearing scheduled for Monday, December 17, 2018)     

14. Resolution Number 5112 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid For the Green Valley Sidewalk 

Addition Project (public hearing) 

15. Citizen Comments      

16. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2018 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

NOVEMBER 13, 2018 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  Mayor Curry called the meeting to 
order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  

Mayor Ashley C. Curry  
Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Kimberly Cook, Councilor 

      Paul Head, Councilor 
      George Pierce, Councilor 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
      Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Jason Hardin, Deputy Police Chief 
      Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
      Christopher Brady 
 

The Mayor led the room in the Pledge of Allegiance.  Butch Williams, Vestavia Hills 
Senior Chaplain and Pastor of Care and Support Ministries, Vestavia Hills United Methodist 
Church, led the invocation. 

 
Chaplain Williams gave a short introduction of the Chaplain program and explained that 

the Vestavia Hills Chaplains receive about 50 hours of training and are here to service the City 
and her employees.  He then introduced the two newest Vestavia Hills Chaplains:   Don Richards 
and Marlin Ellington. 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 

 Mrs. Cook announced November 15, 2018, beginning at 8:30 AM in the Council 
Chambers will be a PTO legislative roundtable.  She stated that this would be a good time 
to talk to the local delegation concerning education and what’s coming up in the next 
legislative session. 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2018 

Page 2 
 

 Mrs. Cook announced a Board of Education accreditation meeting scheduled for Monday, 
November 26, 3 PM, followed by Board meeting at 4 PM. 

 Mr. Pierce welcomed Chamber Board member Rachel Patterson who was in attendance 
representing the Vestavia Hills Chamber of Commerce. 

 Mr. Pierce stated Holiday in the Hills will kick off the holiday season with the official tree 
lighting ceremony on November 27, the December 8 Breakfast with Santa and lots of 
other celebrations throughout the City.  Event schedules can be found on the Chamber 
website.  He reminded everyone to shop Vestavia Hills. 

 The Mayor announced that the Salute to Veterans was well received and well done.  He 
stated the speakers as well as the entertainment were great. 

 Mr. Weaver stated that the Commission met and two requests will be forthcoming to the 
Council. 

 Mr. Weaver welcomed high school students in attendance tonight.   
 Mr. Head announced a work session of the Parks and Recreation Board on Friday at 11:30 

AM along with the regular meeting, 7 AM, November 20, in the Executive Conference 
Room. 

 The Mayor announced the following applicants for the Library Board: Chad Quattlebaum, 
Kevin Archer, Greg Dunaway, Tina Sheikhzeinoddin, Jerome Gilroy, April Marie 
Jackson-MacLennan, Gregory K. Laughlin, William C. Dobbs III, and Ashley Smith.  He 
stated that nine applications were received and interviews will be held on November 28. 

 Mr. Head announced the following applicants for the Parks and Recreation Board: Lyles 
Box, Courtney Hatchett, Jay Morrow, Shelley Gentle, Donald Winningham, Robert 
Garris, Jeremy Owen, and Chad Quattlebaum.  He stated that eight applications have been 
received for this appointment with interviews to be held on November 28. 

 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 Mr. Downes stated that the removal of the limitation of use by the federal government that 
was attached to Wald Park was finally approved.  He stated the efforts to remove the 
limitation removal began about 2 years ago. 

 Mr. Downes stated that the bid process has been completed for Green Valley Road and 
should be on the next agenda for the Council’s approval to connect the existing sidewalks 
from Dolly Ridge/Green Valley and go to the commercial areas along Green Valley. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

 Mrs. Cook stated that she attended the Veterans program at the VHUMC and 
complimented the Mayor on the program.  Councilor Pierce also attended the program. 
She indicated that the speaker was very good and all of the entertainment was terrific.  She 
stated that, on that same day, the Pizitz Living History Day was held, which was a very 
moving service and attended by Mayor Curry and Councilor Pierce.  Congressman Gary 
Palmer was the speaker for this event and he helped to make it a moving event. 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2018 

Page 3 
 

 Mrs. Cook stated that also on the 8th, she attended the Deck the Heights event, which was 
also a well-attended event complete with children’s events and trolleys.  She stated this 
also attracted a lot of patrons to the new Martin’s BBQ restaurant that just opened in that 
area. 

 Mr. Pierce reiterated that the Salute for Veterans program was a wonderful celebration 
and he pointed out how great it was to remember and honor the veterans in this city.  He 
stated that the reception was special, with cakes provided for each area of military service. 

 Mr. Pierce stated that in the morning he will be attending Chamber Board meeting 
beginning at 7:45 AM in the Chamber office. 

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the following meetings were presented for approval:  October 15, 2018 
(Work Session), October 22, 2018 (Regular Meeting) and October 29, 2018 (Special Meeting). 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the October 15, 2018 (Work 

Session) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Weaver and second by Mrs. 
Cook.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the October 22, 2018 

(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Weaver and second 
by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the October 29, 2018 

(Special Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Weaver and second 
by Mr. Head.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2018 

Page 4 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5109 
 

Resolution Number 5109 – A Resolution Declaring Certain Personal Property As Surplus 
And Directing The City Manager To Sell/Dispose Of Said Property 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5109 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mrs. 

Cook. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this was originally donated to the City as surplus Army equipment 
and is no longer needed for use for the City.  The truck is no longer in running condition. 
 
 There being no one to address the Council, the Mayor called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5110 
 

Resolution Number 5110 - A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Take All Actions 
Necessary To Settle Certain Litigation 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5110 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 Bent Owens, Litigation Counselor for the City, explained the background of this lawsuit 
and the required mediation.  He explained that the circumstances included a low-speed impact 
vehicular accident.  He stated he has studied this case and recommends approval of the mediated 
agreement to avoid trial in February.  He pointed out that City employees are increasingly being 
sued in their individual capacities and have no statutory cap on damages.  
 
 Mrs. Cook stated that the Council has discussed, with state lawmakers, the concern over 
a recent Alabama Supreme Court ruling that essentially eliminated the statutory cap for municipal 
employees. She stated that it is difficult for employees to perform the duties of their jobs properly 
when they have to worry about being sued.  She stated the City should further encourage the 
legislature to pass legislation to protect municipal employees when performing their duties. 
 
 The Mayor stated that he will make a point to contact our senators. 
 
 There being no one to address the Council, the Mayor called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2018 

Page 5 
 

 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2808 

 
Ordinance Number 2808 - An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 

Execute A Memo Of Understanding With Jefferson County For Debris 
Collection During Times Of Disaster 

 
 Mr. Downes explained that this memorandum was done previously and has expired.  This 
simply renews that effort in case of emergency for debris removal and efforts of reimbursements 
from FEMA. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2808 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mrs. 

Cook. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked if it were different from last year.  Mr. Downes stated it is the same.  
 
 There being no one to address the Council, the Mayor called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2809 
 

Ordinance Number 2809 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver A License Agreement With Jefferson County 
Emergency Management Authority To Allow Permission For Driver Safety 
Training Programs For UTV’s On The Former Altadena Valley Country 
Club Property 

 
 
 The Mayor stated that this item was withdrawn from the agenda at the request of Jefferson 
County. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT) 
 
 The Mayor indicated that the next proposed Resolution Number 5111 required unanimous 
consent.  He opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and action on 

Resolution Number 5111 was by Mrs. Cook and second was by Mr. Weaver.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2018 

Page 6 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5111 
 

Resolution Number 5111 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Expend 
Additional Funding To Account For A Shortfall In Budgeted Employee 
Longevity Pay   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5111 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated there is not enough money in the budget to cover longevity pay and, 
he has determined an additional $15,000 is needed. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 
Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following resolutions and/or ordinances will be presented at a 
public hearing at the Council’s next regular meeting on November 26, 2018, at 6:00 PM. 

 Ordinance Number 2805 – Rezoning – 3070 Green Valley Road, Lots 1, 2, 3 & 4, 
Meadowlawn Estates, First Addition Less And Except ROW Granted To Jefferson 
County; Rezone From Vestavia Hills R-4 (Medium Density Residential District) To VH 
O-1 (Office District); Horton Realty, Inc., Owners   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2806 – Rezoning – 1200 Vestavia Place; Lot 28, Block 7, Waldridge 
Terrace; Smith Corretti, LLC, Owners; Rezone From Vestavia Hills R-7 (Duplex And 
Triples Residential District) To Vestavia Hills R-9 (Planned Residential Community 
District)   (public hearing)     

 Ordinance Number 2807 – Rezoning - An Ordinance To Further Amend The Zoning 
Ordinance And The Zoning Map Of The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, Adopted 
September 16, 1985, And As Last Amended So As To Approve The Second Amendment 
To Patchwork Farm Planned Unit Development Zoning Application And Development 
Plan Dated September 6, 2018, To Increase The Number Of Attached Dwelling Units 
Within Certain Property Within The Patchwork Farm Planned Unit Development And To 
Rezone Five Single Family Residential Lots From Vestavia Hills PUD (Planned Unit 
Development) To Vestavia Hills R-1 (Low Density Residential District   (public hearing) 

 

 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2018 

Page 7 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 None. 
 
 At 6:32 PM, Mr. Weaver made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 6:33 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2805 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2805 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY VESTAVIA HILLS R-4 TO 
VESTAVIA HILLS O-1 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-4 (medium 

density single family district) to Vestavia Hills O-1 (office district):  

3070 Green Valley Road 
Horton Realty, Inc., Owner(s) 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Lots 1, 2, 3 and 4, Block 2, Meadowlawn Estates, First Addition less and 
except ROW granted to Jefferson County recorded in Volume 6388, Page 
147, Jefferson County Judge of Probate 

 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 26th day of November, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2805 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2805 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 26th day of November, 2018, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2018. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
  
 



Ordinance Number 2805 
Page 3 

 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     OCTOBER 11, 2018

CASE: P-1018-35

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills R-4 to Vestavia Hills O-1

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3070 Green Valley Rd.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Horton Realty, Inc

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property was part of the Cahaba Heights annexation in 
2003. At that time compatible rezoning’s were done by hand. At that time, a 
transcription error was made giving the property an R-4 zoning, instead of the 
appropriate O-1 zoning. This application is to correct that mistake and the City has 
waived all fees. There is currently an office building on site and has maintained office 
uses since annexation.

CHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: This request is consistent with the 
plan for limited mixed use.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation: No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Larson made a motion to recommend rezoning for 3070 Green Valley Rd.
from Vestavia Hills R-4 to Vestavia Hills O-1. Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was carried 
on a roll call; vote as follows:



2

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Gilchrist – yes Ms. Cobb – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Larson – yes 
Mr. House – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes 
Motion carried.









Ordinance Number 2806 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2806 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY VESTAVIA HILLS R-7 TO 
VESTAVIA HILLS R-9 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-7 (duplex and 

triplex residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-9 (planned residential community district):  

1200 Vestavia Place; 
Lot 28, Block 7, Waldridge Terrace (PB 16 PG 68) 

Smith Corretti, LLC, Owner(s) 
 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 26th day of November, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2806 
Page 2 

 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2806 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 26th day of November, 2018, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2018. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
  
 



Ordinance Number 2806 
Page 3 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     OCTOBER 11, 2018 
 

• CASE:  P-1018-36 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning From Vestavia Hills R-7 (Duplex/Triplex) to 
Vestavia Hills R-9 (Single Family) 

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  1200 Vestavia Place 

 
• APPLICANT/OWNER: Smith Corretti, LLC 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Applicant is seeking to rezone 1200 Vestavia Place 

from R-7 to R-4 so that the applicant may build a single family home in lieu of a 
duplex/triplex. Vestavia Place was originally planned as duplex development in 1984. 
Four years later the three adjacent parcels next to the subject parcel were rezoned to 
R-2 for single family development, orphaning the subject parcel. The subject parcel 
has the neither the required lot width nor square footage for R-2 zoning, thus 
requiring the change to R-9. The proposed site plan is attached with the setbacks 
listed as 37.9’ for the frontage along Vestavia Place, 7.5’ for the frontage along 
Marydale Rd., a 7.5’ side setback and a 93’ rear setback. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan for Neighborhood/Village Center.   
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation. 
 

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted. 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems notes. 

 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 



2

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend rezoning for 1200 Vestavia Place
from Vestavia Hills R-7 (Duplex/Triplex) to Vestavia Hills R-9 (Single Family). Second was by 
Mr. Romeo. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Gilchrist – yes Ms. Cobb – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Larson – yes 
Mr. House – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes 
Motion carried.









Ordinance Number 2807 
Page 1 

4813-8758-8985.2 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2807 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, AND AS LAST AMENDED 
SO AS TO APPROVE THE SECOND AMENDMENT TO PATCHWORK 
FARM PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT ZONING APPLICATION AND 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN DATED SEPTEMBER 6, 2018, TO INCREASE 
THE NUMBER OF ATTACHED DWELLING UNITS WITHIN CERTAIN 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE PATCHWORK FARM PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT AND TO REZONE FIVE SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL LOTS FROM VESTAVIA HILLS PUD (PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT) TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 (LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT). 

 
 WHEREAS, on February 23, 2009, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2253 to rezone 87 +/- acres known as 

Patchwork Farms pursuant to the Patchwork Farm Planned Unit Development Zoning Application 

Development Plan dated December 3, 2008 (revised 2/26/09) (the “Patchwork Farms PUD Plan”); 

and 

 WHEREAS, on September 14, 2014, the City Council adopted and approved Ordinance 

Number 2532 to adopt the First Amendment to the Patchwork Farms Planned Unit Development 

Plan dated July 10, 2014; and 

 WHEREAS, various owners of property subject to the Patchwork Farms PUD Plan  have 

filed a Second Amendment to the Patchwork Farms PUD Plan dated September 6, 2018 (the 

“Second Amendment”) requesting, but not limited to, the following: 

 As a result of a property owner’s desire to construct thirty attached residential units on 

property described as Lots 5A and 5C, Patchwork Farms Lot 5 Resurvey Final Plat 

“Christopher Property”, as recorded in Map Book 241, Page 37, Probate Office of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, the maximum attached residential units density under the 

Patchwork Farms PUD Plan will require a 30-unit increase; and 

 The owners of properties described as Lots 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5, Survey of Thuss Farms 

Resurvey #1 as recorded in Map Book 236, Page 85, Probate Office of Jefferson County, 

Alabama, desire to remove their five single-family detached lots from the Patchwork 

Farms PUD and rezone those parcels to Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density residential 

district). 



Ordinance Number 2807 
Page 2 

4813-8758-8985.2 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, as follows:  That the Second Amendment, a copy of which is marked as Exhibit 

B, attached to and incorporated into this Resolution, be, and hereby is approved by the City Council 

of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, as follows: That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended, be further amended so as to allow 

the following described real property (which is subject to the Patchwork Farms PUD Plan) to 

construct thirty (30) additional single family attached units: 

Lots 5A and 5C, Patchwork Farms Lot 5 Resurvey Final Plat “Christopher Property” 
Christopher, LLC, owner(s); and 

 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended, be further amended so as to change 

the class of district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills PUD (planned 

unit development) PR-1 to Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density residential district) with said five lots 

hereby removed from the Patchwork Farms PUD, pursuant to Exhibit A, attached; 

Lot 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5, Survey of Thuss Farms Resurvey #1 
Jeff and Christina Maze, ET AL 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 26th day of November 2018. 

 

 

 

       Ashley C. Curry 

       Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
  



Ordinance Number 2807 
Page 3 

4813-8758-8985.2 

 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby certify 
that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance #2807 is a true and correct copy of such 
Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills on the 26th day 
of November 2018 as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the _____ day of 
_______________, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
       Rebecca Leavings 
       City Clerk 
  



Ordinance Number 2807 
Page 4 

4813-8758-8985.2 

 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     OCTOBER 11, 2018

CASE:  P-0818-34

REQUESTED ACTION: 2nd Amendment To The Patchwork Farms PUD

ADDRESS/LOCATION: Patchwork Farms, Healthy Way, Caldwell Mill Rd., Old 
Looney Mill Rd.

APPLICANT/OWNER: City of Vestavia Hills

REPRESENTING AGENT: Christopher Architects

GENERAL DISCUSSION: The request is to amend the Patchwork Farms in two 
ways.

The first change is to remove the existing five single family lots along Old Looney 
Mill Rd. This will make the number of detached units in the PUD zero. The excised 
lots would then lose the PR-1 zoning and be rezoned to R-1. This change is required 
due a resolution of a legal action between home owners and City/developers.

The second change will increase the maximum density of attached residential units 
located in the PB district from 270 to 305 with the 30 units to be located on Lots 5A 
and 5C. Developer Chris Reebels is proposing 30 condo units on three floors above 
first floor retail (four total stories) with an attached parking garage on lot 5C. The 
retail/condos/parking would join a hotel on Lot 5A through a raised, covered 
pedestrian bridge. Attached units are already a permitted use in a PB district so the 
motion and vote will only be to increase density. The hotel is already a permitted use 
in a PB district and may be used for discussion/context purposes but does not require 
a vote by the Commission. Attached units are also 

City Council started this process with Resolution 5090 September 10, 2018. That 
documents, as well as, renderings of the hotel and condo units are attached.

PATCHWORK FARMS PUD: This request is consistent with the PUD for 
business.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



2

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted

4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend approval for “Part A” of the 2nd
Amendment To The Patchwork Farms PUD. Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was carried on 
a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Gilchrist – yes Ms. Cobb – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Larson – yes 
Mr. House – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend approval for “Part B” of the 2nd 
Amendment To The Patchwork Farms PUD. Second was by Mr. House. Motion was carried on a 
roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Gilchrist – yes Ms. Cobb – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Larson – yes 
Mr. House – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807













Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l:

P
ro

po
se

d 
C

on
ce

pt
s

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 S
IT

E
 S

TU
D

Y

T
H

E
 S

U
M

M
IT

P
A

T
C

H
W

O
R

K
 

F
A

R
M

S

L
IB

E
R

T
Y

 
P
A

R
K

G
R

A
N

D
V

IE
W

 
M

E
D

IC
A

L
 C

E
N

T
E
R

C
O

L
O

N
N

A
D

E

CAHABA RIVER

HIG
HW

AY
 2

80

CA
H
AB

A 
RI

VE
R 

RO
AD

I - 
459

I - 
459

S
U

M
M

IT
 

E
X

P
A

N
S
IO

N

H
O

T
E
L
 S

IT
E

M
ED

JE
T

A
SP

IR
E

LI
FE

T
IM

E
FI

T
N

ES
S

C
A

H
A

BA
 R

ID
G

E 
R
ET

IR
EM

EN
T

A
LT

A
D

EN
A

 V
A

LL
EY

 
PR

ES
BY

T
ER

IA
N

 C
H

U
R
C

H

PU
BL

IX C
A

L
D

W
E
L
L
 M

IL
L
 R

O
A

D

HEALTHY WAY

O
L
D

 L
O

O
N

E
Y

 M
IL

L
 R

O
A

D

M
IX

E
D

-U
S
E
 

A
N

D
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 

D
E
C

K
 S

IT
E

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 S
IT

E
 S

TU
D

Y

M
ED

JE
T

A
SP

IR
E

LI
FE

T
IM

E
FI

T
N

ES
S

C
A

H
A

BA
 R

ID
G

E 
R
ET

IR
EM

EN
T

A
LT

A
D

EN
A

 V
A

LL
EY

 
PR

ES
BY

T
ER

IA
N

 C
H

U
R
C

H

PU
BL

IX C
A

L
D

W
E
L
L
 M

IL
L
 R

O
A

D

HEALTHY WAY

O
L
D

 L
O

O
N

E
Y

 M
IL

L
 R

O
A

D

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 G
ro

un
d 

Fl
oo

r 
S

ite

2
 L

EV
EL

PA
R

K
IN

G
 D

EC
K

H
EA

H
EA

H
LT

H
LT

H
T

Y
 W

Y
W

A
Y

AA
Y

A

M
IX

ED
-U

SE
BU

IL
D

IN
G

CALDWELL MILL ROAD

LO
A

D
IN

G
 D

O
C

K

PO
O

LLLLL

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 G
ro

un
d 

Fl
oo

r 
U

se
 D

ia
gr

am

H
O

TE
L 

S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
O

O
TA

G
E

 
 

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 –
 G

S
F 

28
,3

50
 S

F
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 –
 G

S
F 

28
,2

65
 S

F
 

TH
IR

D
 F

LO
O

R
 –

 G
S

F 
24

,5
25

 S
F

 
FO

U
R

TH
 F

LO
O

R
 –

 G
S

F 
24

,5
25

 S
F

 
TO

TA
L 

G
R

O
S

S
 S

Q
U

A
R

E
 F

O
O

TA
G

E
 –

 1
05

,6
65

 G
S

F

H
O

TE
L 

A
M

E
N

IT
IE

S
 

FI
R

S
T 

FL
O

O
R

 
 

C
O

FF
E

E
S

H
O

P
 1

,4
00

 S
F

 
 

LO
B

B
Y

 A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T 

– 
4,

10
0 

S
F

 
 

R
E

S
TA

U
R

A
N

T/
C

A
TE

R
IN

G
 –

 5
,0

80
 S

F
 

 
C

O
N

FE
R

E
N

C
E

 C
E

N
TE

R
 –

 1
0,

68
2 

S
F

 
 

E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 A
M

E
N

IT
IE

S
 

 
 

P
O

O
L 

S
IZ

E
 –

 2
,4

00
 S

F
 

 
 

P
O

O
L 

P
LA

ZA
 - 

S
E

A
TI

N
G

, (
5)

 G
A

ZE
B

O
S

, R
E

S
TR

O
O

M
S

 –
 6

,5
00

 S
F

 
S

E
C

O
N

D
 F

LO
O

R
 

 
S

PA
 –

 2
,9

50
 S

F
 

 
M

A
IN

 B
A

LC
O

N
Y

 –
 2

,5
80

 S
F

H
O

TE
L 

U
N

IT
S

 C
O

U
N

T
 

 
TY

P
IC

A
L 

U
N

IT
S

 =
 +

/-
 4

00
 S

F 
 

 
S

U
IT

E
 U

N
IT

S
 =

 6
50

 S
F 

-1
,2

00
 S

F
  

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 
 

 
N

O
 U

N
IT

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 
 

 
S

IN
G

LE
/D

O
U

B
LE

 B
E

D
 –

 3
5 

U
N

IT
S

 
 

S
U

IT
E

 –
 3

 U
N

IT
S

 
TH

IR
D

 F
LO

O
R

 
 

 
S

IN
G

LE
/D

O
U

B
LE

 B
E

D
 –

 3
5 

U
N

IT
S

 
 

S
U

IT
E

 –
 4

 U
N

IT
S

 
FO

U
R

TH
 F

LO
O

R
 

 
 

S
IN

G
LE

/D
O

U
B

LE
 B

E
D

 –
 3

5 
U

N
IT

S
 

 
S

U
IT

E
 –

 4
 U

N
IT

S

 
TO

TA
L 

U
N

IT
S

 
 

 
TO

TA
L 

S
IN

G
LE

/D
O

U
B

LE
 B

E
D

 –
 1

05
 U

N
IT

S
 

 
TO

TA
L 

S
U

IT
E

 –
11

 U
N

IT
S

 
TO

TA
L 

U
N

IT
S

 1
16

 U
N

IT
S

 

R
E

TA
IL

/C
O

N
D

O
S

 –
 1

6,
25

0 
S

F 
FO

O
TP

R
IN

T
 

FI
R

S
T 

FL
O

O
R

 
 

R
E

TA
IL

 –
 3

,5
00

 S
F 

 
 

O
FF

IC
E

 S
PA

C
E

 –
 9

,5
00

 S
F

 
S

E
C

O
N

D
 F

LO
O

R
 

 
(8

) 
2 

B
E

D
R

O
O

M
 U

N
IT

S
 –

 1
,1

50
 S

F 
E

A
C

H
 

 
(2

) 
3 

B
E

D
R

O
O

M
 U

N
IT

S
 –

 1
,4

00
 S

F 
E

A
C

H
 

TH
IR

D
 F

LO
O

R
 

 
 

(8
) 

2 
B

E
D

R
O

O
M

 U
N

IT
S

 –
 1

,1
50

 S
F 

E
A

C
H

 
 

(2
) 

3 
B

E
D

R
O

O
M

 U
N

IT
S

 –
 1

,4
00

 S
F 

E
A

C
H

 
FO

U
R

TH
 F

LO
O

R
 

 
(8

) 
2 

B
E

D
R

O
O

M
 U

N
IT

S
 –

 1
,1

50
 S

F 
E

A
C

H
 

 
(2

) 
3 

B
E

D
R

O
O

M
 U

N
IT

S
 –

 1
,4

00
 S

F 
E

A
C

H
 

TO
TA

L 
U

N
IT

S
 

 
(2

4)
 2

 B
E

D
R

O
O

M
 U

N
IT

S
 

 
(6

) 
3 

B
E

D
R

O
O

M
 U

N
IT

S
 

 
30

 T
O

TA
L 

U
N

IT
S

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 G
ro

un
d 

Fl
oo

r 
U

se
 D

ia
gr

am

H
O

TE
L 

S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
O

O
TA

G
E

 
 

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 –
 G

S
F 

28
,3

50
 S

F
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 –
 G

S
F 

28
,2

65
 S

F
 

TH
IR

D
 F

LO
O

R
 –

 G
S

F 
24

,5
25

 S
F

 
FO

U
R

TH
 F

LO
O

R
 –

 G
S

F 
24

,5
25

 S
F

 
TO

TA
L 

G
R

O
S

S
 S

Q
U

A
R

E
 F

O
O

TA
G

E
 –

 1
05

,6
65

 G
S

F

H
O

TE
L 

A
M

E
N

IT
IE

S
 

FI
R

S
T 

FL
O

O
R

 
 

C
O

FF
E

E
S

H
O

P
 1

,4
00

 S
F

 
 

LO
B

B
Y

 A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T 

– 
4,

10
0 

S
F

 
 

R
E

S
TA

U
R

A
N

T/
C

A
TE

R
IN

G
 –

 5
,0

80
 S

F
 

 
C

O
N

FE
R

E
N

C
E

 C
E

N
TE

R
 –

 1
0,

68
2 

S
F

 
 

E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 A
M

E
N

IT
IE

S
 

 
 

P
O

O
L 

S
IZ

E
 –

 2
,4

00
 S

F
 

 
 

P
O

O
L 

P
LA

ZA
 - 

S
E

A
TI

N
G

, (
5)

 G
A

ZE
B

O
S

, R
E

S
TR

O
O

M
S

 –
 6

,5
00

 S
F

 
S

E
C

O
N

D
 F

LO
O

R
 

 
S

PA
 –

 2
,9

50
 S

F
 

 
M

A
IN

 B
A

LC
O

N
Y

 –
 2

,5
80

 S
F

H
O

TE
L 

U
N

IT
S

 C
O

U
N

T
 

 
TY

P
IC

A
L 

U
N

IT
S

 =
 +

/-
 4

00
 S

F 
 

 
S

U
IT

E
 U

N
IT

S
 =

 6
50

 S
F 

-1
,2

00
 S

F
  

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 
 

 
N

O
 U

N
IT

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 
 

 
S

IN
G

LE
/D

O
U

B
LE

 B
E

D
 –

 3
5 

U
N

IT
S

 
 

S
U

IT
E

 –
 3

 U
N

IT
S

 
TH

IR
D

 F
LO

O
R

 
 

 
S

IN
G

LE
/D

O
U

B
LE

 B
E

D
 –

 3
5 

U
N

IT
S

 
 

S
U

IT
E

 –
 4

 U
N

IT
S

 
FO

U
R

TH
 F

LO
O

R
 

 
 

S
IN

G
LE

/D
O

U
B

LE
 B

E
D

 –
 3

5 
U

N
IT

S
 

 
S

U
IT

E
 –

 4
 U

N
IT

S

 
TO

TA
L 

U
N

IT
S

 
 

 
TO

TA
L 

S
IN

G
LE

/D
O

U
B

LE
 B

E
D

 –
 1

05
 U

N
IT

S
 

 
TO

TA
L 

S
U

IT
E

 –
11

 U
N

IT
S

 
TO

TA
L 

U
N

IT
S

 1
16

 U
N

IT
S

 

R
E

TA
IL

/C
O

N
D

O
S

 –
 1

6,
25

0 
S

F 
FO

O
TP

R
IN

T
 

FI
R

S
T 

FL
O

O
R

 
 

R
E

TA
IL

 –
 3

,5
00

 S
F 

 
 

O
FF

IC
E

 S
PA

C
E

 –
 9

,5
00

 S
F

 
S

E
C

O
N

D
 F

LO
O

R
 

 
(8

) 
2 

B
E

D
R

O
O

M
 U

N
IT

S
 –

 1
,1

50
 S

F 
E

A
C

H
 

 
(2

) 
3 

B
E

D
R

O
O

M
 U

N
IT

S
 –

 1
,4

00
 S

F 
E

A
C

H
 

TH
IR

D
 F

LO
O

R
 

 
 

(8
) 

2 
B

E
D

R
O

O
M

 U
N

IT
S

 –
 1

,1
50

 S
F 

E
A

C
H

 
 

(2
) 

3 
B

E
D

R
O

O
M

 U
N

IT
S

 –
 1

,4
00

 S
F 

E
A

C
H

 
FO

U
R

TH
 F

LO
O

R
 

 
(8

) 
2 

B
E

D
R

O
O

M
 U

N
IT

S
 –

 1
,1

50
 S

F 
E

A
C

H
 

 
(2

) 
3 

B
E

D
R

O
O

M
 U

N
IT

S
 –

 1
,4

00
 S

F 
E

A
C

H
 

TO
TA

L 
U

N
IT

S
 

 
(2

4)
 2

 B
E

D
R

O
O

M
 U

N
IT

S
 

 
(6

) 
3 

B
E

D
R

O
O

M
 U

N
IT

S
 

 
30

 T
O

TA
L 

U
N

IT
S

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 T
hi

rd
 &

 F
ou

rt
h 

Fl
oo

r 
U

se
 D

ia
gr

am

H
O

TE
L 

S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
O

O
TA

G
E

 
 

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 –
 G

S
F 

28
,3

50
 S

F
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 –
 G

S
F 

28
,2

65
 S

F
 

TH
IR

D
 F

LO
O

R
 –

 G
S

F 
24

,5
25

 S
F

 
FO

U
R

TH
 F

LO
O

R
 –

 G
S

F 
24

,5
25

 S
F

 
TO

TA
L 

G
R

O
S

S
 S

Q
U

A
R

E
 F

O
O

TA
G

E
 –

 1
05

,6
65

 G
S

F

H
O

TE
L 

A
M

E
N

IT
IE

S
 

FI
R

S
T 

FL
O

O
R

 
 

C
O

FF
E

E
S

H
O

P
 1

,4
00

 S
F

 
 

LO
B

B
Y

 A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T 

– 
4,

10
0 

S
F

 
 

R
E

S
TA

U
R

A
N

T/
C

A
TE

R
IN

G
 –

 5
,0

80
 S

F
 

 
C

O
N

FE
R

E
N

C
E

 C
E

N
TE

R
 –

 1
0,

68
2 

S
F

 
 

E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 A
M

E
N

IT
IE

S
 

 
 

P
O

O
L 

S
IZ

E
 –

 2
,4

00
 S

F
 

 
 

P
O

O
L 

P
LA

ZA
 - 

S
E

A
TI

N
G

, (
5)

 G
A

ZE
B

O
S

, R
E

S
TR

O
O

M
S

 –
 6

,5
00

 S
F

 
S

E
C

O
N

D
 F

LO
O

R
 

 
S

PA
 –

 2
,9

50
 S

F
 

 
M

A
IN

 B
A

LC
O

N
Y

 –
 2

,5
80

 S
F

H
O

TE
L 

U
N

IT
S

 C
O

U
N

T
 

 
TY

P
IC

A
L 

U
N

IT
S

 =
 +

/-
 4

00
 S

F 
 

 
S

U
IT

E
 U

N
IT

S
 =

 6
50

 S
F 

-1
,2

00
 S

F
  

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 
 

 
N

O
 U

N
IT

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 
 

 
S

IN
G

LE
/D

O
U

B
LE

 B
E

D
 –

 3
5 

U
N

IT
S

 
 

S
U

IT
E

 –
 3

 U
N

IT
S

 
TH

IR
D

 F
LO

O
R

 
 

 
S

IN
G

LE
/D

O
U

B
LE

 B
E

D
 –

 3
5 

U
N

IT
S

 
 

S
U

IT
E

 –
 4

 U
N

IT
S

 
FO

U
R

TH
 F

LO
O

R
 

 
 

S
IN

G
LE

/D
O

U
B

LE
 B

E
D

 –
 3

5 
U

N
IT

S
 

 
S

U
IT

E
 –

 4
 U

N
IT

S

 
TO

TA
L 

U
N

IT
S

 
 

 
TO

TA
L 

S
IN

G
LE

/D
O

U
B

LE
 B

E
D

 –
 1

05
 U

N
IT

S
 

 
TO

TA
L 

S
U

IT
E

 –
11

 U
N

IT
S

 
TO

TA
L 

U
N

IT
S

 1
16

 U
N

IT
S

 

R
E

TA
IL

/C
O

N
D

O
S

 –
 1

6,
25

0 
S

F 
FO

O
TP

R
IN

T
 

FI
R

S
T 

FL
O

O
R

 
 

R
E

TA
IL

 –
 3

,5
00

 S
F 

 
 

O
FF

IC
E

 S
PA

C
E

 –
 9

,5
00

 S
F

 
S

E
C

O
N

D
 F

LO
O

R
 

 
(8

) 
2 

B
E

D
R

O
O

M
 U

N
IT

S
 –

 1
,1

50
 S

F 
E

A
C

H
 

 
(2

) 
3 

B
E

D
R

O
O

M
 U

N
IT

S
 –

 1
,4

00
 S

F 
E

A
C

H
 

TH
IR

D
 F

LO
O

R
 

 
 

(8
) 

2 
B

E
D

R
O

O
M

 U
N

IT
S

 –
 1

,1
50

 S
F 

E
A

C
H

 
 

(2
) 

3 
B

E
D

R
O

O
M

 U
N

IT
S

 –
 1

,4
00

 S
F 

E
A

C
H

 
FO

U
R

TH
 F

LO
O

R
 

 
(8

) 
2 

B
E

D
R

O
O

M
 U

N
IT

S
 –

 1
,1

50
 S

F 
E

A
C

H
 

 
(2

) 
3 

B
E

D
R

O
O

M
 U

N
IT

S
 –

 1
,4

00
 S

F 
E

A
C

H
 

TO
TA

L 
U

N
IT

S
 

 
(2

4)
 2

 B
E

D
R

O
O

M
 U

N
IT

S
 

 
(6

) 
3 

B
E

D
R

O
O

M
 U

N
IT

S
 

 
30

 T
O

TA
L 

U
N

IT
S

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 P
ar

ki
ng

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts

*

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

D

 
S

TR
E

E
T 

PA
R

K
IN

G
- 1

4 
S

PA
C

E
S

 
D

E
C

K
 - 

43
,7

50
 S

F 
FO

O
TP

R
IN

T
 

 
D

E
C

K
 –

 L
E

V
E

L 
1 

– 
11

8 
S

PA
C

E
S

 
 

D
E

C
K

 –
 L

E
V

E
L 

2 
– 

11
8 

S
PA

C
E

S

 
TO

TA
L 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 S
P

A
C

E
S

 –
 2

50
 S

P
A

C
E

S

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 G
ro

un
d 

Fl
oo

r 
S

ite
 a

nd
 F

ur
ni

tu
re

 P
la

n

2
 L

EV
EL

PA
R

K
IN

G
 D

EC
K

H
EA

H
EA

H
LT

H
TLT
H

Y
 W

Y
W

A
Y

A
Y

A

M
IX

ED
-U

SE
BU

IL
D

IN
G

CALDWELL MILL ROAD

LO
A

D
IN

G
 D

O
C

K

PO
O

LLLLL

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 S
ec

on
d 

Fl
oo

r 
Fu

rn
itu

re
 P

la
n

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 T
hi

rd
 &

 F
ou

rt
h 

Fl
oo

r 
Fu

rn
itu

re
 P

la
n

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 A
er

ia
l V

ie
w

 L
oo

ki
ng

 S
ou

th

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 V
ie

w
 L

oo
ki

ng
 S

ou
th

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 V
ie

w
 a

t R
es

ta
ur

an
t P

at
io

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 V
ie

w
 o

f H
ot

el
 L

ob
by

 E
nt

ry

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 V
ie

w
 o

f H
ot

el
 L

ob
by

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 V
ie

w
 F

ro
m

 L
ob

by

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 V
ie

w
 o

f P
oo

l A
re

a

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 V
ie

w
 o

f P
oo

l A
re

a

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 P
oo

l V
ie

w

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 P
oo

l A
re

a 
Vi

ew
 L

oo
ki

ng
 E

as
t

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 A
er

ia
l V

ie
w

 L
oo

ki
ng

 N
or

th

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 T
yp

ic
al

 L
ux

ur
y 

S
ui

te
 V

ie
w

 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 T
yp

ic
al

 H
ot

el
 R

oo
m

 V
ie

w
 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 A
dd

iti
on

al
 P

er
sp

ec
tiv

e 
Vi

ew
s

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 A
dd

iti
on

al
 P

er
sp

ec
tiv

e 
Vi

ew
s

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 B
ra

nd
in

g

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



P
at

ch
w

o
rk

 H
o

te
l  

 B
ra

nd
in

g

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2807



Ordinance Number 2810 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2810 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 TO 
VESTAVIA HILLS O-1 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills O-1 (office park district):  

4517 Pine Tree Circle; 
Mark Hancock, Owner(s) 

 
More Particularly Described As Follows: 
 

That part of the SW ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 27, Township 18 South, Range 
2 West, situated in Jefferson County, Alabama, more particular descried as 
follows: 

 
Begin at the SW corner of said 1/4-1/4 section and run thence Eastwardly 
along the south line of said 1/4-1/4 section for a distance of 833.5 feet to the 
point of beginning of tract here described; from point of beginning true 
obtained continue eastwardly along south line for a distance of 100 feet; 
thence turn an angle to the left of 90 degrees and run northwardly for a 
distance of 250 feet; thence turn an angle to the left of 90 degrees and run 
westwardly for a distance of 100 feet; thence turn an angle to the left of 90 
degrees and run southwardly for a distance of 250 feet to the point of 
beginning. 

 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 17th day of December, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2810 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2810 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 17th day of December, 2018, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2018. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2810 
Page 3 

 
 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     NOVEMBER 8, 2018

CASE: P-1118-42

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills R-1 Vestavia Hills O-1

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 4517 Pine Tree Cir.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Mark A. Hancock

REPRESNTING AGENT:

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property is on the southern end of Pine Tree Cir.
Applicant is seeking rezoning to build a two story office building (6,000 sq. ft. +/-).
The proposed building meets all requirements of an O-1 zoning, including parking 
and buffering. The proposed architecture is similar to what was approved in the Blue 
Lake area. A sidewalk will be constructed as required by the Blue Lake Area Study. 
A proposed site plan, landscaping plan, and rendering is attached.

CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: The request is consistent with the 
Cahaba Heights Community Plan for limited mixed use and Blue Lake Area Study

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  
2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2810



2

MOTION Mr. Larson made a motion to recommend rezoning approval for 4517 Pine Tree 
Cir. from Vestavia Hills R-1 Vestavia Hills O-1. Second was by Mr. Sykes. Motion was carried 
on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Ms. Cobb – yes
Mr. House – yes Mr. Larson – yes 
Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2810



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2810



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2810



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2810



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2810



Ordinance Number 2811 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2811 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE 
APPROVAL TO ALLOW OUTDOOR RECREATION AND 
PHYSICAL TRAINING 

 
 WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010 the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama approved and adopted Ordinance Number 2331 entitled the Vestavia Hills Zoning 

Code and establishing a conditional use approval for certain uses not permissible by right 

in zoning classifications; and 

 WHEREAS, on January 22, 2018, the City Council adopted and approved 

Ordinance Number 2741 to rezone the property located at 2301 Old Columbiana Road 

from Institutional to Vestavia Hills B-2, general business district for recreation and 

physical fitness; and 

WHEREAS, on August 20, 2018, Richard Pennino, owner of Forge Fitness, 

submitted an application  to allow outdoor recreation training such as jogging, running, 

fitness, obstacle training, etc; on the property located at 2301 Old Columbiana Road and 

 WHEREAS, the property located at 2301 Old Columbiana Road, is presently 

zoned Vestavia Hills B-2 (business district) with restrictions; and 

 WHEREAS, Table 6 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code sets forth the permissible 

uses within a B-2 classification; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said application dated August 20, 2018 is attached and 

hereby incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2811; and 

WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission considered said 

application at their regular meeting of October 11, 2018 and recommended approval with 

the following conditions:  (1) No unreasonable outdoor noise in violation of the standards 

set in the City’s noise ordinance, as amended, before 8 AM or after 9 PM, Monday through 

Friday and before 9AM or after 5PM on Saturdays or anytime on Sunday; (2) outdoor 

batting cages are prohibited on premise; (3) no amplified music outside of the building; 

and (4) any changes to outdoor lighting to be approved by the Design Review Board. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 



Ordinance Number 2811 
Page 2 

 

1. Conditional Use Approval is hereby approved for Richard Pennino, Forge 

Fitness, for use of the property located at 2301 Old Columbiana Road to allow 

outdoor recreational and fitness activities including, but not limited to jogging, 

running, fitness, obstacle training with the following conditions: 

a) No unreasonable outdoor noise in violation of the standards set in the 

City’s noise ordinance, as amended, before 8 AM or after 9 PM, 

Monday through Friday and before 9AM or after 5PM on Saturdays or 

anytime on Sunday;  

b) Outdoor batting cages are prohibited on premise; and 

c) No amplified music outside of the building; and  

d) Any changes to outdoor lighting to be approved by the Design Review 

Board  

e) This conditional use approval is location specific and if the outdoor 

fitness use ceases on the premises for a period of 12 months, said 

conditional use shall be considered null and void; 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 17th day of December, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2811 
Page 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as Acting City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2811 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 17th day of December, 2018 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2018. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     OCTOBER 11, 2018

CASE:  P-1018-33

REQUESTED ACTION: Conditional Use Approval For Outdoor 
Recreation/Training Such as Jogging, Running, Fitness, & Obstacle Training

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 2301 Old Columbiana Rd.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Richard Pennino

REPRESNTING AGENT:

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property is currently the home of Forge Fitness, a 
crossfit gym. The applicants have also included a list of possible activities and 
proposed locations on site. Outdoor recreation is specifically listed as requiring 
conditional use approval for B-2 zoning and the Commission may recommend 
specific activities at their discretion. 

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The request is consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan for Neighborhood (recreational areas).

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  Rezoning conditioned on uses presented.

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems notes.

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

MOTION Mr. House made a motion to recommend Conditional Use approval for Outdoor 
Recreation for 2301 Old Columbiana Rd. with the following conditions:

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2811



1. No outdoor noise before 8AM and 9PM, M-F; 
before 9AM and after 5PM, Sat 

2. Batting cages are prohibited 
3. No amplified music outside of building 
4. Any changes to outdoor lighting to be approved by 

DRB. 
 Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Sykes – yes           
Mr. Romeo – yes    Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. House – yes    Mr. Larson – yes     
Mrs. Barnes – yes 
Motion carried. 
 
 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2811



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2811



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2811



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2811



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2811



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2811



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2811



Resolution Number 5112 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5112 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR THE GREEN VALLEY 

SIDEWALK ADDITION PROJECT 

 

 WHEREAS, on October 18, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. the City of Vestavia Hills publicly read 

aloud bids submitted for the Green Valley Road Sidewalk Addition; and 

WHEREAS, the City Engineer has reviewed the bids, detailed them in an Interoffice 

Memorandum to the City Council and City Manager dated November 19, 2018 and recommended 

acceptance of the bid submitted by Triple J Construction.  A copy of said Interoffice Memorandum 

is marked as Exhibit A attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 5112 as if written 

fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept the 

recommendation of the City Engineer and accept said bid as detailed in Exhibit A. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid submitted by Triple J Construction as detailed in attached Exhibit A and 

recommended by the City Engineer, is hereby accepted; and 

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized the expenditure of said funds from the Capital 

Projects Fund; 

3. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver all required 

agreements, contracts and documents in order to complete said project; and 

4. This Resolution Number 5112 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 10th day of December, 2018. 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor  

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 



Exhibit A


	2018_1126CC_A
	2018_1113CC_M
	Ordinance 2805
	Ordinance 2806
	Ordinance 2807
	Ordinance 2810
	Ordinance 2811
	Resolution 5112
	5112
	Res_5112_Exhibit_A




